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BILL LOCK.YER, Attorney General 
" of the State of Califonlia 

ERNEST MARTINEZ, State Bar No. 74752 
Deputy Attonley General 

Califonlia Department of Justice 
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, California 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-2544 
Facsilllile: (213) 897-2804 

Attonleys for COlllplainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

MERIT AID PHARMACY & MEDICAL 
SUPPLY INC. 
7017 Van Nuys Blvd. #C 
Van Nuys, CA 91405 
KRIKOR G. YARIAY AN, President 

Phanllacy Permit No. PHY43634 

BENJAMIN SAMUEL ISRAEL, 
Pharmacist-In-Charge 
3747 Clarington Avenue No. 22 
Los Angeles, CA 90034 

Phanllacist License No. RPH 18637, 

and 

In the Matter of the Accusation and Petition To 
Revoke Probation Against: 

DANIEL ELLIS HEIDNER, 
P. O. Box 7935 
NOlilu'idge, CA 91327 

Phanllacist License No. RPH 28364 
(Probationary Status) 

Respondents. 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2286 

DEFAULT DECISION 
AND ORDER 

AS TO 
MERIT AID PHARMACY & 
MEDICAL SUPPLY INC. 

[GovenUllent Code § 11520] 
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FINDINGS OF FACT 


1. On or about June 5, 2000, C01nplainant Patricia F. Harris!) in her official 

capacity as Executive Officer of the Board ofPhannacy, Departlnent of Consu1ner Affairs, State 

of California, filed Accusation No. 2286 against Merit Aid Phamlacy & Medical Supply Inc. 

("Respondent") before the Board ofPhannacy (the "Board"). 

2. On or about July 27, 1998, the Board ofPhannacy issued Phanllacy 

Pennit Nunlber PHY43634 to Respondent. The Phanllacy Penllit was in full force and effect at 

all tinles relevant to the charges brought herein and expired on July 1, 2000, without renewal. 

3. On or about June 14,2000, Thon1as Buck, an e1nployee of the Departnlent 

of Justice, served by CeIiified Mail a copy of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation 

No. 2286, State1nent to Respondent, Request for Discovery, and Govenll11ent Code sections 

11507.5, 11507.6, and 11507.7 to Respondent's address of record with the Board, which was and 

is 7017 Van Nuys Blvd. #C, Van Nuys, CA 91405. A copy of the Accusation and Petition to 

Revoke Probation, the associated supple1nental docun1ents and Declaration of Service are 

attached hereto as "Exhibit A," and they are incorporated as if fully set f01ih herein. 

4. The above-described service of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke 

Probation was effective as a 1natter of law pursuant to the provisions of Govenilllent Code 

section 11505, subdivision (c). 

5. On or about June 30,2000, the afore1nentioned docu1nents were returned 

by the U.S. Postal Service n1arked "Unclain1ed." A copy of the postal retun1ed docunlents are 

attached hereto as "Exhibit B," and they are incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

6. Govenllnent Code section 11506 states, in pertinent pati: 

"(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the nlerits if the respondent 

files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all patis of 

the accusation not expressly ad1nitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall constitute a 

waiver of respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion 1nay nevertheless 

grant a hearing." 
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7. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service 

upon theln of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, and therefore waived their right 

to a hearing on the n1erits of Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 2286. 

8. Califon1ia Goven1111ent Code section 11520 states, in pertinent pali: 

"(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the 

heating, the agency Inay take action based upon the respondent's express adn1issions or 

upon other evidence and affidavits Inay be used as evidence without any notice to 

respondent. " 

9. Pursuant to its autholity under Govenunent Code section 11520, the Board 

finds Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without fll1iher hearing and, based on 

Respondent's express adlnissions by way of default and the evidence before it, contained in 

Exhibits A and B, finds that the allegations, and each of theIn, in Accusation and Petition to 

Revoke Probation No. 2286 are tlue. 

10. The total costs for investigation and enforcement against Respondent 

Merit Aid are $13,561.88 as of April 30, 2001. 

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Merit Aid Phannacy 

& Medical Supply Inc. has subjected its Phannacy Pennit No. PRY43634 to discipline. 

2. A copy of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and the related 

doculnents and Declaration of Service are attached hereto. 

3. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

4. The Board is authorized to revoke Respondent's Phannacy Pen11it based 

upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation: 

a. Sections 4104(b), 4301(j), (0) of the Code and 21 California 

Federal Regulations section 1301.71, failed to provide effective security controls; 

b. Sections 4104(a) and 4301(0) of the Code, failure to have 

procedures in place to protect public; 
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c. Section 4113(a) of the Code, failure to notify the Board of 

designated PhaTInacist-In-Charge; 

d. Section 4081(a) of the Code and 16 CalifoTIlia Code of Regulations, 

section 1718, failure to nlaintain current inventory and accounting of dangerous dlUgS. 

Attachnlents: 
Exhibit A: Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, Case No.2286, Associated 

Supplelnental DOCUlnents and Declaration of Service 
Exhibit B: Postal RetUTIl Docll1nents 

DOJ docket llumber:03853110-LA2000AD0652 

CML 05/3112001 
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BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEP ARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

MERIT AID PHARMACY & MEDICAL 
SUPPLY INC. 
7017 Van Nuys Blvd. #C 
Van Nuys, CA 91405 

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 43634 

Respondent. 

Case No. 2286 

DEFAULT DECISION 
AND ORDER 

Pharmacy Pertuit nunlber PHY 43634, heretofore issued to Respondent Merit Aid 

Pharmacy & Medical Supply Inc., is hereby revoked. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may 

serve a written Iuotion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on 

within seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion 

may vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the 

statute. 

This Decision shall become effective on Augus t 22, 2001 

It is so ORDERED July 23, 2001 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 

Board President 
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BILL LOCKYER, Attorney General 
of the State of California 

ERNEST MARTINEZ, State Bar No. 74752 
Deputy Attorney General 
California Department of Justice 
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, California 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-2544 
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

MERIT AID PHARMACY & MEDICAL SUPPL 
INC. 
7017 Van Nuys Boulevard #C 
Van Nuys, CA 91405 
KRIKOR G. Y ARIA Y AN, President 

Pharmacy License No. PRY43634, 

BENJAMIN SAMUEL ISRAEL, Pharmacist-In
Charge 
3747 Claringotn Avenue No.22 
Los Angeles, CA 90034 

Phannacist License No. RPH18637, 

and 

In the Matter of the Accusation and Petition to
Revoke Probation Against: 

DANIEL ELLIS HEIDNER, Pharmacist 
P. o. Pox 7935 
Northridge, CA 91327 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 28364 
(Probationary status) 
Respondents 

Case No. 2286 

ACCUSATION 
[as to all Respondents] 

and 

PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION 
[as to Respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner] 

Complainant alleges: 
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PARTIES 

1. Patricia F. Harris ("Complainant") brings this Accusation and Petition to 

Revoke Probation solely in her official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of 

Phannacy. 

2. On or about July 27, 1998, the Board ofPharmacy issued Phannacy License 

Number PRY 43634 to Merit Aid Pharmacy & Medical Supply Inc., Krikor G. Yahiayan., 

President ("Respondent Merit Aid or Merit Aid Pharmacy"). The Pharmacy License was in full 

force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on July 1, 

2000, unless renewed. 

3. On or about July 27, 1952, the Board of Pharmacy issued Phannacist License 

Number RPH 18637 to Benjamin Samuel Israel, Pharmacist-In-Charge ("Respondent Israel"). 

The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought 

herein and will expire on May 31, 2002, unless renewed. 

4. On or about July 31, 1973, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License 

Number RPH 28364 to Daniel Ellis Heidner ("Respondent Heidner"). Said license will expire on 

September 30, 2001 , unless renewed. 

A. On or about July 7, 1996, respondent Heidner's license to practice pharmacy 

was placed on stayed revocation as a result of stipulated settlement and admissions to violations 

related to controlled substances, such as shortages and unlawful administration and dispensing of 

dangerous drugs without a prescription and to a third party. Respondent Heidner was placed on 

probation for five (5) years and his pharmacist license was subject to 23 separate terms and 

conditions of probation. Term No. 12 stated that respondent Heidner would submit to peer 

review as deemed necessary by the Board. 

B. On or about March 23, 2000, in People v. Daniel Heidner, Los Angeles 

Superior Court, Northwest (Van Nuys) District (formerly Municipal Court, Los Angeles Judicial 

District), Case No. OPN01347, the Court ordered respondent Heidner's pharmacist license 

confiscated and ordered Heidner not to practic'e pharmacy, as a condition of O.R., until 

conclusion of the pending criminal case or the Board's final disciplinary action against 
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respondent Heidner. The order was requested by the Board pursuant to an appearance authorized 

pursuant to Penal Code section 23. 

JURISDICTION 

5. This Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation is brought before the Board 

ofPhannacy ("Board"), under the authority of the following pertinent sections of the Business 

and Professions Code ("Code"). 

6. Section 4300 of the Code states: 

(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked. 

(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose 

default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by any of 

the following methods: 

(2) Placing him or her upon probation. 

(4) Revoking his or her license. 

(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in its 

discretion may deem proper. 

(c) ..... The board may, in its sole discretion, issue a probationary license to any 

applicant for a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct and who has met all other 

requirements for licensure. The board may issue the license subject to any terms or conditions 

not contrary to public policy, including, but not limited to, the following: 

(l) Medical or psychiatric evaluation. 

(2) Continuing medical or psychiatric treatment. 

(3) Restriction of type or circumstances of practice. 

(4) Continuing participation in a board-approved rehabilitation program. 

(5) Abstention from the use of alcohol or drugs. 

(6) Random fluid testing for alcohol or drugs. 

(7) Compliance with laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy. 
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(d) The board may initiate disciplinary proceedings to revoke or suspend any 

probationary certificate of licensure for any violation of the tenns and conditions ofprobation. 

Upon satisfactory completion of probation, the board shall convert the probationary certificate to 

a regular certificate, free of conditions. 

(e) The"proceedings under this article shall be conducted in accordance with 

Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 11500) of Part 1 of Division 3 of the Government Code, 

and the board shall have all the powers granted therein. The action shall be final, except that the 

propriety of the action is subject to review by the superior court pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the 

Code of Civil Procedure. 

7. Section 4301 of the Code states that the Board shall take action against any 

holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured 

by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is 

not limited to, any of the following: 

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any 

dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or 

injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 

4000) of the Business and Professions Code, or to any other person or to the public, or to the 

extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the 

practice authorized by the license. 

(i) Except as otherwise authorized by law, knowingly selling, furnishing, giving 

away, or administering or offering to sell, furnish, give away, or administer any controlled 

substance to an addict. 

U) The violation of any of the statutes of this state or of the United States 

regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs. 

(k) The co~viction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving the 

use, consumption, or self-administration o{any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any 

combination of those substances. 
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(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

and duties of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the Business and 

Professions Code. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with 

Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled substances or of a 

violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or dangerous dnlgs shall be 

conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall 

be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into 

the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of 

discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous dnlgs, 

to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications, 

functions, and duties of a licensee under Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) of the 

Business and Professions Code. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of 

nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The board 

may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been 

affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of 

sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the 

person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the 

verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment. 

(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 

abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of Chapter 9 (commencing 

with Section 4000) of the Business and Professions Code or of the applicable federal and state 

laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by the board. 

(q) Engaging in any conduct that subverts or attempts to subvert an investigation 

of the board. 

8. Section 1770 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations states that for 

the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license pursuant to 
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Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a crime or 

act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a licensee 

or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a licensee or 

registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent 

with the public health, safety, or welfare. 

9. Section 4022 of the Code states that "dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" 

means any drug or device unsafe for self-use, ... and includes the following: 

(c) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully dispensed 

only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006. 

10. Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that no person shall furnish 

any dangerous drug except upon the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, or 

veterinarian. 

11. Section 4081 of the Code states that: 

(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of 

dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times, during business hours, open to 

inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years froIn 

the date of making. Acurrent inventory shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, 

pharmacy, medical device retailer, veterinary food-animal drug retailer, physician, dentist, 

podiatrists, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution, or establishment holding a 

currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license, permit, registration or exemption under 

Division 2 (coinmencing with Section 1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Part 3 

(commencing with Section 1620) ofDivision 2 of, Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 2300) 

of Division 3 of, or Part 2 (commencing with Section 5699) ofDivisiop. 6 of, Welfare and 

Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous drugs or devices. 

(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, veterinary 

food-animal drug retailer, or medical device retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the 

pharmacist-in-charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in this section. 
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(c) The pharmacist-in-charge or exemptee shall not be criminally responsible for 

acts of the owner, officer, partner, or employee which violate this section and of which the 

pharmacist-in-charge or exemptee had no knowledge, or in which he or she did not knowingly 

participate. 

12. Section 4305 of the Code states: 

(a) Any person who has obtained a license to conduct a pharmacy, shall notify the 

board within 30 days of the termination of employment of any pharmacist who takes charge of, 

or acts as manager of the pharmacy. Failure to notify the board within the 30-day period shall 

constitute grounds for disciplinary action. 

(b) Any person who has obtained a license to conduct a phannacy, who willfully 

fails to notify the board of the termination of employment of any pharmacist who takes charge 

of, or acts as manager of the pharmacy, and who continues to permit the con1pounding or 

dispensing of prescriptions, or the furnishing of drugs or poisons, in his or her phannacy, except 

by a pharmacist, shall be subj ect to summary suspension or revocation of his or her license to 

conduct a pharmacy. 

(c) Any pharmacist who takes charge of, or acts as manager of a pharmacy, who 

tenninates his or her employment at the phannacy, shall notify the board within 30 days of 

termination of employment. Failure to notify the board within the 30-day period shall constitute 

grounds for disciplinary action. 

13. Section 4327 of the Code states that any person who, while on duty sells, 

dispenses or compounds any drug while under the influence of any dangerous drug or alcoholic 

beverages shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

14. Title 16, section 1718 of the California Code of Regulations states "Current 

Inventory" as used in Section 4332 of the Business and Professions Code shall be considered to 

include complete accountability for all dangerous drugs handled by every licensee enumerated in 

Section 4332. 

The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section 1304.04 

shall be available for inspection upon request for at least 2 years after the date of the inventory. 
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15. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request 

the administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or 

violations of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation 

and enforcement of the case. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner ) 


(Bus.& Prof. Code Sections 4301(h) & 4327) 


(Self-administration or use & under influence of dangerous drug at phannacy) 


16. Respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner has subj ected his pharn1acist license to 

disciplinary action under section 4301(h) and section 4327 in that on or about Febnlary 23, 2000, 

and on or about March 16, 2000, respondent Heidner, administered and furnished a dangerous 

drug, to wit, Methadone and/or Percocet, to hiInself, in a manner as to be dangerous or injurious 

to himself, others and the public, or to the extent that, while he was employed and on duty at 

Merit Aid Pharmacy, he was under the influence of a dangerous drug which impaired his ability 

to conduct with safety the practice of pharmacy. Additional circumstances are that the 

preliminary lab tests of a urine sample collected from respondent Heidner on February 23, 2000, 

indicated positive for opiates and benzodiazepines. Furthermore, the criminal court ordered daily 

urinalysis testing of respondent Heidner between March 15, 2000, and March 23, 2000. On or 

about March 16, 2000, while respondent Heidner had continued to work at Merit Aid Pharmacy, 

respondent Heidner again tested positive in preliminary results, for dangerous drugs, to wit, 

opiates, methadone, or benzodiazepines. 

fi 

fi 

fi 

. fi 

fi 
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner) 


(Bus.& Prof. Code sec. 4059( a) furnishing a dangerous drug without a prescription) 


(Health & Safety Code sec. 11158(a) dispensing a controlled substance without a prescription) 


17. Respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner has sUbjected his phannacist license to 

disciplinary action under section 4059(a) and Health and Safety Code section 11158(a) in that on 

or about September 3, 1999, respondent Heidner dispensed and furnished a dangerous drug and a 

Schedule II controlled substance, to wit, methadone 10mg, without a valid prescription. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(As to respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner ) 

(Health and Safety Code section 11170, furnishing controlled substance to oneself) 

18. Respondent Heidner has subjected his phannacist license to disciplinary 

action under Health and Safety Code section 11170, in that beginning on or about March 23, 

1999, to on or about March 23,2000, respondent Heidner administered or funlished a controlled 

substance to himself. More specifically, respondent Heidner administered or furnished the 

following controlled substance to himself on the following dates: 

March 23, 1999, Methadone 

April 21, 1999, Methadone 

May 18,1999, Methadone 

June 15, 1999, Methadone 

July 21, 1999, Methadone 

August 17, 1999, Methadone 

September 15,1999, Methadone 

October 29, 1999, Methadone 

November 23,1999, Methadone 

December 16, 1999, Methadone 

December 16, 1999, Percocet 
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January 7, 2000, Percocet 

January 26, 2000, Percocet 

February 14, 2000, Percocet 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to respondent Merit Aid) 


(Bus. & Prof. Code Section 4104 (b), 21 CFR 1301.71, Bus. & Prof. Code 4301(j)&(0)) 


(failure to provide effective security controls and procedures to guard and protect against theft 


and diversion of controlled substances in violation of state and federal laws ) 


19. The allegations of paragraphs 16 through 18, inclusive, are incorporated by reference 

as though fully set forth herein. 

20. Respondent Merit Aid Phannacy & Medical Supply Inc. is subject to disciplinary 

action under sections 4104 (b), 21 Code of Federal Regulations section 1301.71, Bus.& Prof. 

Code section 4301 (j) and (0), in that Respondent Merit Aid Phannacy failed to have in place 

procedures for taking action to protect the public when a licensed individual, employed by the 

phannacy, to wit, respondent Daniel Ellis Heidner, was known to have engaged in the theft or 

diversion or self-use of prescription drugs belonging to the Merit Aid Phannacy. Additionally, 

Respondent Merit Aid Phannacy failed to provide effective controls and procedures to guard 

against theft and diversion of controlled substances. 

The additional circumstances are as follows: The inspections ofMerit Aid Phannacy and 

review of its records on or about February 23 and February 28, 2000, reveal that beginning on or 

about March of 1999, respondent Heidner was ordering, diverting and furnishing and 

administering controlled substances to himselfwhile employed at Merit Aid Phannacy. In 

addition, controlled substances and dangerous drugs, to wit, 600 of Methadone 10mg tablets 

were missing and unaccounted for from the stock on hand. 

fi 

fi 
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FIFTH C.AUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to Merit Aid Pharmacy) 


(Bus.&Prof. Code section 4104 (a); Bus.& Prof. Code section 4301 (0)) 


(Failure to have procedures in place to protect the public when licensee is known to be 


chemically impaired to the extent that it affects his ability to practice as a licensed pharmacist) 


21. The allegations of paragraphs 16 through 20, inclusive, are incorporated as though 

fully set forth herein. 

22. Respondent Merit Aid has subjected its pharmacy license to discipline under sections 

4104 (a) and 4301(0) in that it failed to have in place procedures for taking action to protect the 

public when it knew a licensee employed by respondent Merit Aid was chemically impaired to 

the extent it affected his ability to practice the profession or occupation authorized by his license. 

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to Merit Aid Pharmacy) 


(B&P 4113(a); failure to timely notify Board of designated Pharmacist In Charge) 


23. Respondent Merit Aid Pharmacy has subjected its pharmacy license to discipline 

under Business and Professions Code section 4113(a) in that it failed to notify the Board in 

writing within 30 days of designation, of the identity and license number of the designated 

Pharmacist In Charge and the date he was designated. The circumstances are as follows: 

Board records indicated that respondent Israel had been the designated Pharmacist In 

Charge only from November 13,1999 to December 22,1999. However, on or about February 23, 

2000, respondent represented to Board inspectors by phone that he was presently the Pharmacist 

In Charge at Merit Aid and that he never disassociated, or notified the Board of such 

disassociation from that designation with respondent Merit Aid. No writing indicating that 

respondent Israel had been redesignated, orhad never disassociated as Pharmacist In Charge, was 

received by the Board within 30 days after December 23, 1999. 
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SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to Merit Aid Pharmacy and Benjamin Israel, Pharmacist In Charge) 


(Bus. & Prof. Code 4081(a); 16 Cal.Code of Reg. 1718) 


(failure to maintain current inventory and accounting of all dangerous drugs at Pharmacy) 


24. The allegations of paragraphs 16 through 20, inclusive, are incorporated by reference 

as though fully set forth herein. 

25. Respondent Merit Aid Phannacy has subjected its phannacy license to discipline, and 

respondent Benjamin Israel has subjected his phannacist license to discipline, under Business 

and Professions Code section 4081(a) and Title 16 California Code of Regulations section 1718 

in that they e,ach were responsible for, and failed to keep and maintain a current inventory, 

including a complete accountability of all dangerous drugs in stock at the phannacy by reason of 

the fact that a Board investigator's audit of Merit Aid's records on or about Febnlary 23, 2000, 

revealed a shortage of600 Methadone 10mg tablets. 

NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 


(As to Benj amin Israel, Phannacist In Charge) 


(B&P 4301(0); B&P 4113(b); 16 CCR 1709.1) 


26. The allegations of paragraphs 16 through 25, inclusive, are incorporated by reference 

as though fully set forth herein. 

27. Respondent Benjamin Israel has subjected his phannacist license to discipline under 

Business and Professions Code sections 4301(0) in that he violated, directly or indirectly and 

abetted the violations of the provisions of the Phannacy Law (beginning with Bus.& Prof. Code 

section 4000) and regulations of the Board as alleged in paragraphs 16 through 25 of this 

accusation, and as alleged as follows: 

Business and Professions Code section 4113Ca). 


&. Title 16 California Code ofRegulations section 1709.1 


While employed at Merit Aid Pharmacy and designated as the Pharmacist In Charge 

thereof, respondent Israel failed to take responsibility for the daily operation of the phannacy and 

failed to ensure that all state and federal laws and regulations were being complied with as 
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alleged in paragraphs 16 through 25, and in the following manner: by allowing Daniel Heidner to 

order controlled substances without a properly executed power of attorney, by allowing Daniel 

Heidner to obtain, then furnish or dispense to himself dangerous drugs and controlled substances 

at the pharmacy, by allowing Daniel Heidner to work while being under the influence of 

controlled substance a~d dangerous drug on or about February 23, 2000, and again on or about 

March 16, 2000, by failing to work at Merit Aid on a daily basis, thereby allowing Daniel 

Heidner, a probationer to the Board, who was prohibited from acting as a Phannacist In Charge 

or being without supervision, to work at Merit Aid without such supervision and in a capacity as 

an acting Pharmacist In Charge. 

PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION [AS TO DANIEL HEIDNER] 

DANIEL HEIDNER'S FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH CONDITIONS OF PROBATION 

28. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 25, inclusive, are incorporated herein by 

reference as though fully set forth herein. 

29. Grounds exist to revoke respondent Daniel Heidner~ s probation and reimpose the 

order of revocation in that respondent Heidner did not comply with the following conditions of 

probation: 

A. Term No. 10, "Obey all laws - Respondent shall obey all federal and state laws 

and regulations substantially related to the practice of pharmacy." Respondent Heidner failed to 

obey all federal and state laws substantially related to the practice of pharmacy as set forth in 

paragraphs 22 through 53, of this Accusation. Failure to comply with this term of the probation 

agreement is a violation of 16 California Code of Regulations section 1773(a)(I). 

B. Term No. 14 "Notice for Employers - Within 15 days of taking new 

employment, Heidner shall have his new employer report to the Board, in writing, 

acknowledging the employer has read the disciplinary decision." The Verification of 

Employment provided for Heidner and Merit Aid was signed by a Sarkis Khachatrian with his 

title listed as owner. Sarkis Khachatrian is not. listed on any documents on file with this Board, 

as an owner, corporate officer or director. This document does not comply with the requirement 

to notify new employers within 15 days of taking new employment. Respondent Heidner's hire 
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date on that form was listed as December 21, 1998. Failure to comply with this term of the 

probation agreement with this Board is a violation of California Code of Regulations section 

1773(a)(5). 

C. Term No. 15, "No being Pharmacist-In-Charge - Respondent Heidner shall not 

be the PIC of any pha~acy other than AMC Medical Plaza Pharmacy." Between December 4, 

1998, and November 5, 1999, the Board had no record ofa designated Pharmacist In Charge 

listed for respondent Heidner or for respondent Merit Aid Pharmacy even though no other 

pharmacists were apparently employed at Merit Aid Pharmacy during the above alleged time 

period. Respondent Heidner, as the only pharmacist employed and working at Merit Aid 

Pharmacy, must have been acting as the Pharmacist In Charge and consequently working without 

supervision between December 28, 1998, and November 5,1999. Failure to comply with this 

term ofprobation is a violation of Title 16 California Code of Regulations section 1773(b)(4). 

DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS 

30. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Daniel 

Ellis Heidner, Complainant alleges that on or about June 7, 1996, in a prior disciplinary action 

entitled, In the Matter of the Accusation Against AMC Plaza Pharmacy and Daniel Ellis Heidner, 

before the Board of Pharmacy, in Case Number No. 1835, respondent Heidner's pharmacist 

license was disciplined as a result of a settlement stipulation wherein respondent Heidner 

adlnitted violations of the Pharmacy law related to his failure to maintain and keep accurate and 

current inventory of controlled substances such that a Board audit revealed a shortage of 539 

(lml) ampules and 681 (100mg) tablets of Demerol (Meperidine) a schedule II controlled 

substance, as well as furnishing a dangerous drug without a prescription by injections, Demerol 

(Meperidine) to his wife. Respondent Heidner's License was ordered revoked but stayed and 

placed on probation for 5 years on various terms and conditions including, 180 day suspension, 

retake and pass the law section of the next scheduled Pharmacy Exam, undergo a psychiatric 

evaluation, maintain separate file of records pertaining to the acquisition and disposition of all 

controlled substances, and pay costs of investigation and enforcement of action in the amount of 

$5,500.00. The decision became effective July 7, 1996, and is now final and incorporated by 

reference as if fully set forth herein. 
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PRAYER 


WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein 

alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy License Number PHY 43634, issued to 

Merit Aid Pharmacy &, Medical Supply Inc., Krikor G. Yahiayan, President; 

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH18637, issued to 

Benjamin Samuel Israel, Pharmacist-In-Charge; 

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 28364, issued to 

Daniel Ellis Heidner, Pharmacist; 

4. Ordering, jointly and separately, Merit Aid Pharmacy & Medical Supply Inc., 

Benjamin Samuel Israel and Daniel Ellis Heidner, to pay the Board ofPhannacy the reasonable 

costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 125.3; 

5. Taking such other and further action as the Board ofPhmmacy deems 

necessary and proper. 

DATED: Co /5/DD
.. , 

LAOOAD0462 

a:\Heidner2.acc.wpd 

PATRICIA F. HARRIS 
Executive Officer 
Board of Pharmacy 
State of California 

Comp lainant 
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